
 London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Finance, Commercial Revenue and Contracts Policy & 
Accountability Committee 

 
Agenda 

 

Wednesday 18 November 2020 at 6.30 pm 
This meeting will be held remotely: https://youtu.be/enNccQ7pH4Y 

 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

Administration: Opposition 

Councillor PJ Murphy (Chair) 
Councillor Patricia Quigley 
Councillor Fiona Smith 
Councillor Guy Vincent 
 

Councillor Donald Johnson 
 

Co-optees 

Tony Boys 
Erik Hohenstein 
Chris Littmoden 
Judith Worthy 
 

CONTACT OFFICER: Kayode Adewumi 
Head of Democratic Services   
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 07899661869 
 E-mail: kayode.adewumi@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
Agendas are available on the Council’s website: www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend. A loop system for hearing impairment 
is provided, along with disabled access to the building. 
 

Date Issued: 11 November 2020 

https://youtu.be/enNccQ7pH4Y
mailto:kayode.adewumi@lbhf.gov.uk
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Finance, Commercial Revenue and Contracts 
Policy & Accountability Committee 

Agenda 
 

18 November 2020 
 
 
Item  Pages 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

2.   ROLL CALL AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 The Chair will carry out a roll call to confirm attendance and members 
will have the opportunity to declare any interests.  
 
If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, 
whether or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any 
other significant interest which they consider should be declared in the 
public interest, they should declare the existence and, unless it is a 
sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature 
of the interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or 
as soon as it becomes apparent.  
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary 
interest or other significant interest may also make representations, give 
evidence or answer questions about the matter. The Councillor must 
then withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is 
discussed and any vote taken.  
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and 
speak, then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should 
withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration. 
Councillors who have declared other significant interests should also 
withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation 
in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may 
give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest.  
 
Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a 
dispensation to that effect has been obtained from the Standards 
Committee. 

 

3.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  4 - 10 

 To approve as an accurate record, and the Chairman to sign the 
minutes of the meeting held on 5 October 2020. 

 

4.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 This meeting is being held remotely via Microsoft Teams. If you would 
like to ask a question about any of the items on the agenda, either via 
Teams or in writing, please contact: Kayode.Adewumi@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
 You can watch the meeting live on YouTube: 
https://youtu.be/enNccQ7pH4Y 

 

mailto:Kayode.Adewumi@lbhf.gov.uk
https://youtu.be/enNccQ7pH4Y


5.   MANAGING ADULT SOCIAL CARE SERVICES AND FINANCES 
DURING COVID-19  

11 - 19 

 To receive a presentation on how Adult Social Care is managing its 
services and finances during Covid-19. 

 

6.   HAMMERSMITH BRIDGE - VERBAL UPDATE   

 To receive a verbal update on Hammersmith Bridge.  

7.   COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME   

 The Committee is asked to suggest topics for future consideration.  

8.   DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS   

 The following dates are proposed:  
 

 Thursday 28 January 2021 

 Tuesday 31 March 2021 

 

 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

.  London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Finance, Commercial 
Revenue and Contracts 
Policy & Accountability 

Committee 
Minutes 

 

Monday 5 October 2020 
 

 

 
 

PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors PJ Murphy (Chair), Patricia Quigley, 
Fiona Smith, Guy Vincent and Donald Johnson 
 
Co-opted members: Tony Boys (Community) and Erik Hohenstein (Community) 
 
Other Councillors: Councillor Max Schmid (Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Commercial Services and Councillor Andrew Jones (Cabinet Member for the 
Economy) 
 
Officers:  
Kim Smith – Chief Executive 
Rhian Davies – Director of Resources 
Emily Hill – Director of Finance 
Tony Clements - Interim Strategic Director for Economy 
Matt Rumble – Head of Area Regeneration 
David Burns – Assistant Director - Growth 
Joanne Woodward – Chief Planning Officer 
 
NOTE: This meeting was held remotely. A recording of the meeting can be found at: 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=a4vjES3zWzA 

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were submitted by Chris Littmoden and Judith Worthy.  
 

2. ROLL CALL AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
The Chair carried out a roll call to confirm attendance. There were no 
declarations of interest. 
 

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=a4vjES3zWzA


_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

The minutes of the meeting held on 23 July 2020 were approved and signed 
by the Chair. 
 

4. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
The Chair noted the absence of Lord Stephen Greenhalgh and Nicholas 
Botterill, both former Leaders of the Council, who had been invited to 
participate in the discussions on item 6 - Review of Termination of the 
Conditional Land Sale Agreement. 
 

5. FINANCIAL IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON THE COUNCIL  
 
Emily Hill gave an update on the council’s financial position as it supports our 
residents, communities and businesses through the Covid-19 pandemic.  A 
net adverse impact of £18.3 million is currently forecast based on the best 
estimate of costs, revenue losses and government funding. £7.1 million of the 
adverse impact is a potential charge against the current year general fund 
budget with the balance a charge against future years and the Housing 
Revenue Account. The forecast continues to be updated as the government 
and council response to the pandemic evolves.  If the government does not 
fully fund the Covid-19 pandemic it will pose a significant financial risk. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Johnson on the difference between 
general and specific grants figures, it was reported that the specific grants are 
not accounted for until eligible expenditure had been committed in line with 
the grant conditions.  He commended local government’s speed of response 
to Covid-19 and hoped that this behaviour will translate into BAU.  He asked 
for clarification on items of expenditure that had been saved or delayed as a 
result of the pandemic.  Emily noted that the government issued a 
procurement note requiring local authorities to continue paying some 
suppliers despite services being interrupted by Covid-19 to ensure their 
financial resilience.  General guidance to local authorities was not to furlough 
staff. Therefore, there were limited reductions in costs as a result of Covid-19. 
Where possible, some of our contractors were able to deploy their staff to our 
Covid-19 response.  
 
Tony Boys asked what the long-term changes would be.  Although the 
specific changes were difficult to forecast, flexible accommodation would be a 
key change.  The council has an opportunity to consolidate accommodation 
by occupying a smaller footprint.  Until a proper business case and analysis 
has been undertaken, savings will not translate into budget forecast.  The 
Committee noted the council is submitting monthly CCG funding claims. 
Agreement in principle for the 1st 3 months claims had been received. 
 
In response to a question about the sufficiency of funds for test and trace, it 
was report that the current forecasted spend for this specific grant was within 
the allocated funds.  H&F has a good partnership with the local NHS and 
other partners resulting a strong local test and trace response.  Regarding 
mitigations, all SLT members look at their departmental overspends and have 
an action plan as part of the budget monitoring process.  In addition, directors 
are exploring proposals to bring forward some of next year’s savings plans. 

Page 5



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 
A £6.8 million deficit was reported in the 2019/20 accounts which was funded 
from reserves.  As to the Council’s response to Covid-19 in supporting the 
recovery of the local economy, some S106 funding will be used as a one-off 
source of funding for economic recovery and regeneration.  Regarding CAN, 
it was acknowledged that there was a phenomenal response from the 
community.  The Council acted as an enabler to support vulnerable residents.  
The financial value of the volunteers’ time had not been costed.  The council 
did not spend significant sums of money on partnerships but worked closely 
with key partners in the NHS and Imperial College for example.   
 
Regarding introducing a council tax increase, Councillor Schmid noted that 
the council introduced a discretionary council tax relief scheme to help 
families affected by the COVID outbreak.  Council tax banding is set by the 
Government.  Therefore, the Council cannot change bands or be creative by 
charging some more and less others.   Erik Hohenstein was of the view that 
the Council needs to be more innovative by using commercial revenue to 
support the less fortunate.  Councillor Schmid noted that there is a 
commercial revenue drive which will lead to increased income generation. 
 
Erik expressed concerns about the level of business rates owed by 
businesses and the impact on the Council.   Emily noted that that business 
rates collection was budgeted at the safety net level and therefore received a 
minimum level of income either from business rates or by way of government 
grant meaning that the lower collection rate does not affect our budget.   
 
Tony commended the Director of Public Health for doing a very good job in 
lowering the infection rate in Hammersmith.  
 
The meeting thanked Emily and her staff for the update.  
 

6. REVIEW OF TERMINATION OF THE CONDITIONAL LAND SALE 
AGREEMENT  
 
The Chair noted the absence of Lord Stephen Greenhalgh and Nicholas 
Botterill, both former Leaders of the Council, who had been invited to 
participate in the discussions on item 6 - Review of Termination of the 
Conditional Land Sale Agreement. 
 
The Committee received a report reviewing the Leader's decision of the 15th 
November 2019 approving the termination of the Conditional Land Sale 
Agreement (CLSA) which the council entered into with Capital & Counties 
Properties PLC (“CapCo”) in January 2013.  The report explained the terms of 
the CLSA and the potential implications for the council and the residents of 
the two estates, West Kensington and Gibbs Green Estates, affected had the 
CLSA not been terminated. 
 
The principal reason for the termination of the CLSA was to stop the 
demolition and redevelopment of the West Kensington and Gibbs Green 
estates as part of the Earls Court master plan and, in doing so, end a decade 
of uncertainty for the residents of both estates. Termination required the 

Page 6



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

council to write off £5.9m of historic projects costs against the Housing 
Revenue Account and £200,000 of historic General Fund costs.  
 
Matt Rumble informed the committee that under the original deal, the Council 
was to receive up to 760 replacement homes and a fixed maximum cash 
payment of £90m (plus £15m for Gibbs Green School and Farm Lane).  This 
reduced to £89,500,000 if the Seagrave Road Houses were not included in 
the Option Land at the relevant time. The deal was not linked to changes in 
property values or inflation.  
 
It was noted that the present value of the £105m cash payment was 
estimated in 2012 as only £84.9m (based on five, yearly instalments).   The 
true cost of vacant possession estimated between £150m and £174m would 
mean the council had to use the full £105m paid under the CLSA, borrow 
money to fulfil its contractual obligations and ultimately dispose of up to 88 
replacement homes.  The impact of the council’s obligations to pay for vacant 
possession of the site would have meant it could not commit to rehousing all 
residents of West Kensington and Gibbs Green Estates within the 
regeneration’s masterplan area.   
 
Councillor Quigley noted that the CLSA required the council to cover 
adaptation costs of replacement homes with the developer’s liability for 
adaptation on the whole scheme limited to £100,000.  She was of the view 
that this was totally unacceptable and poor judgement of the parties who 
negotiated the deal.  Co-production was very important in the design of any 
large development like this.  She asked for a briefing on the Council’s Defend 
our Homes policy.  
 
Briefing on the Council’s Defend our Homes policy. 
 
Action by: - Matt Rumble (Head of Regeneration) 
 
Tony Boys was surprised that the politicians who negotiated this deal had not 
responded to the Committee’s invitation to attend the meeting.  He was of the 
view that the deal should be referred to a Parliamentary Committee for 
review. Councillor Murphy asked officers whether it was common practice not 
to index link a deal like this, not to obtain an independent valuation of the land 
or move the cost of vacant possession on to the council. Officers noted that 
the lack of indexation was the most significant shortfall as the longer the 
scheme took the less value the council would obtain.  It was not usual 
practice to shift the cost of vacant possession on the council.  Only one 
valuation model was presented to the council.  No other independent 
valuation was obtained.  
 
Councillor Schmid noted that all the contracts the administration has inherited 
were index linked except this one. The deal would have bankrupted the 
council if it went ahead.  The Leader noted that it was disappointing that the 
members and officers who were involved in this deal were not in attendance. 
The deal was a financial disaster for residents.  Lessons must be learnt, and 
a review of the advice given to the council undertaken. The scheme was 
speculative and undeliverable.  

Page 7



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 
Erik Hohenstein asked whether the valuation undertaken was a fairness 
opinion. He queried what was the brief on the land valuation and what did the 
future hold for the residents on the estates.   The Leader responded that a 
new developer had been invited to participate in the regeneration of the area.  
Delancey’s plans tie in with the council’s industrial strategy.  The aim is to turn 
Hammersmith and Fulham into a global digital hotspot. H&F will become the 
centre for digital media and STEM industries.  The refurbishment of the Gibbs 
Green and West Ken estates would be undertaken by an experienced 
developer working with the council.  
 
The Chair thanked the officers and Members for their contributions.  He 
promised to set up a Task Force to review the buyback decision.  
 
Acton by: - Councillor PJ Murphy 
 

7. CIVIC CAMPUS PROGRAMME - OCTOBER 2020 UPDATE  
 
David Burns reported that the programme was developing as planned.  The 
current budget was forecasting an underspend. The total budget for the Town 
Hall building refurbishment and fit out is £46.5m, and the revenue budget for 
decant is £35.9m. The decant is now complete and officers are finalising 
accounts with the contractors.  
 
Covid-19 has caused some brief delays to activity but had not affected the 
overall programme delivery dates.  Risks are emerging in relation to third 
party diversions and service utilities. The project team continue to monitor 
both the direct construction impacts and the financial viability impacts on the 
project, and the LLP board also reviews this as part of its obligations. 
 
Stage 4 design and contractor proposals for the fixed price contract were 
submitted at the end of July.  Final contract terms and price intended to be 
submitted for final approval by the Council and the JV, and for legal 
completion on 12th October.  Some elements in both contracts will remain as 
provisional sums, as Stage 5 design will need to be completed for example on 
interior design and category B fit out requirements.  
 
The Council is completing its decision-making process for the acquisition of 
the commercial units from the joint venture.  Pre-lets have in principle been 
agreed for the cinema and the retail unit.  Lease agreements on these 
properties will soon be signed, once the formal decision-making process is 
completed.  Discussions continue on pre-lets and pre-sales for the other 
commercial elements of the scheme, although marketing advice from agents 
is to wait until later in 2021 before actively marketing further.   The detailed 
design of the Civic Campus is moving into detailed Stage 5 and Cat B fit out 
processes, which will provide further opportunity to refine the approach to the 
office spaces in response to Covid-19 where appropriate. 
 
The Committee welcomed the report and were delighted that it was on track 
and on budget.  In response to a question from Councillor Vincent about the 
viability of the pre let cinema agreement in light of the current difficulties 

Page 8



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

facing the film industry, it was noted that there were risks but step in 
arrangements are in place if the prospective occupier faces difficulty.  Officers 
explained that a mandatory lockdown will not trigger additional contractual 
costs for the Council, but the contractor would also not be penalised.  Either 
sides would be able to exit the contract if necessary, with appropriate legal 
protections and notices to do so if required. 
 
The Committee was informed that David was leaving the council.  The 
Committee thanked him for all his hard work over the years on various 
regeneration projects and wished him all the best for the future.  
 

8. SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS - UPDATE REPORT  
 
Joanne Woodward presented an update of the current position regarding 
Section 106 (S106) balances of funds received, pending, and proposed 
expenditure as outlined in the table below. It was noted that the S106 funds 
are received from obligations negotiated on over 230 individual developments 
across the borough. 
 

Overview of s106 balances at 1st September 2020 

 (£’000) 

Available balance (cash in hand) at 1 September 2020 £52,906 

Expected future receipts  £127,546 

Total current and expected future funds £180,452 

Proposed expenditure £32,961 

 
Councillor Jones noted that S106 is supporting the green agenda, the huge 
challenges the Council is facing as a result of COVID 19 and the economy, 
and helping residents acquire new skills. Members welcomed the report 
particularly the support S106 funding is providing in this period of 
considerable change.   
 
The Committee thanked Jo and her team for keeping a tight grip on this area 
and all their hard work in producing the report.  
 

9. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
 
Wednesday 18th November 2020 
 

 
Meeting started: 6.30 pm 
Meeting ended: 8.38 pm 

 
 

Chairman   

 
 
 

Contact officer: Kayode Adewumi 
Committee Co-ordinator 

Page 9



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Governance and Scrutiny 
 : 07899661869 
 E-mail: kayode.adewumi@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

Page 10



Managing Adult Social Care services and 
finances during Covid-19

Finance, Commercial Revenue and Contracts Policy and Accountability Committee

Wednesday 18th November 2020

By Lisa Redfern (Strategic Director of Social Care) and Prakash Daryanani (Head of Social Care 
Finance)

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 5



Key national messages from 
directors of adult social care (1)

• Need to rapidly adapt to changing circumstances

• Being very proactive in engaging with and taking a range of 
measures to support providers 

• The pandemic has made an extremely fragile care market 
even more susceptible to market failure

• Rapid discharge from hospital

P
age 12



Key national messages from 
directors of adult social care (2)

• More financial support is needed to help manage adult 
social care response to the pandemic

• Increasing demographic pressures with a focus on 
services for working age adults 

• Estimates suggest £6-8 billion level of funding required 
to support social care on a more sustainable level and to 
meet growth and demand for an ageing population

P
age 13



Hammersmith and Fulham adult social 
care Covid-19 additional support
Services Details £m

Adult social care – extra demand Supporting Covid-19 positive residents in their 

own homes, shielding and self isolating

2.182

Sheltered schemes deep cleans 0.027

Adult social care – supporting the 

market

Additional funding to support the financial 

resilience and costs being faced by providers

2.275

Workforce pressures Reablement cost of staff deployed to hospital 

discharge

0.777

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) PPE equipment for use by care providers and 

key workers 

2.115

Adult Social Care Total 7.376

Social Care is assuming Covid-19 funding from the following sources: Infection control £1.6m, Hospital discharge 

programme £1.3m, MHCLG Income £0.4m and the balance from the un-ringfenced emergency Covid-19 grant £4.1m. 

Cabinet have been advised on 2nd November of the Council’s Covid-19 financial position, which shows a projected shortfall 

in Covid-19 funding to meet the support provided to residents and businesses in the Borough, therefore the un-ringfenced 

grant may not be sufficient to cover the pressures faced by departments which will include the remaining unfunded £4.1m 

adult social care position above.   

P
age 14



Notable outcomes
• 98% attendance by our home care workforce

• Adding social care staff to the H&F CAN helpline

• Published case study in a medical journal and in LGA & ADASS bulletin on our 

innovative infection control work with care homes

• Very positive praise by Duncan Selbie, (then), head of PHE and published in his 

weekly bulletin

• Joint blog with Imperial and excellent examples of collaborative work with the 

NHS

• Weekly Business Intelligence Activity dashboard

• Overspend projection April 2020- £1.816m and now expected £0.675m

P
age 15



6

Social Care Gross Expenditure 2020-21 (£92.7m)

External 
Providers 

£60.8m
(65%)

In-House 
Services £3m

(3%)

Corporate 
Support 

Charges and 
Capital Charges 

£6.9m
(7%)

Running Cost 
£1.5m
(2%)

Staffing £11m
(12%)

Supporting 
People Services 

£5.5m
(6%)

Third Sector Community 
Investment £4.3m

(5%)

P
age 16



Managing the budget 
position
• Management actions:

• Greater leadership ‘grip’ and management support with care providers

• Continuous social care reviews and wellbeing support

• Reviewing of high cost care support

• Managing the budget in an integrated way with operational managers, 
commissioning and finance

• Greater use of dashboards to manage performance during Covid-19

P
age 17



Winter planning
• Key themes:

• Robust infection control in care settings

• Collaboration across health and social care for safe discharge 
and preventing unavoidable admissions

• Supporting people who receive care, workforce and carers

• Supporting the system, through distribution of infection 
control funding (Phase 2) and supporting the care market

P
age 18



Future service budget pressures

2021/22 Estimated Pressures £000’s

Demographic pressures from an ageing population with increasing complex needs 471

People with Learning Disabilities transitioning from children’s services with a number of 

increasing transitions 

889

Hospital discharge reassessments into the social care market (funding available in 2020/21 

only) 

1,035

Care market and inflationary support (assumed 4.5%) 2,390

Significant unknown risks under long Covid-19 for mental health pressures, isolation, 

increasing drugs and alcohol and obesity 

??

Total 21/22 Estimated Pressures 4,785

Council officers are working on the medium term budget strategy where proposals will be 
presented to members on how the budget pressures are to be managed as part of the 
2021/22 Council Budget. 

P
age 19


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	5 Managing Adult Social Care services and finances during Covid-19

